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Director’s Message
2017 was a very successful year for us. I am proud to report that not only did we
continue to provide award winning, highly reliable electricity services at highly
competitive prices, but we also met or exceeded all of our financial policies and
goals, as we have for the past few years. As a result, we received credit rating
upgrades from all three of our credit rating agencies for the first time since we
established our credit rating.
In addition to our operational and financial success, we continue to experience
great change as Roseville’s community owned utility, and, as an industry. Most
industries have changed significantly over the past few decades, and some no
longer exist. At times, the pace of change seems to be moving at lightning speed. For over 100 years, the electric
utility industry saw relatively little change. Today, change, and the pace of the change, is our new normal.
Technological innovation is one of the key drivers of change in the electric utility business. Rooftop solar, electric
vehicles, advanced energy controls, energy storage, zero net energy homes are just some of the things that
our businesses and residents want – all made possible because of new technology. Every year something new
is invented or improved upon and we are here to support, educate, and deliver new energy solutions for our
community. A few recent examples include:
•

Over half of Roseville’s electricity this year came from renewable resources – including water, solar,
geothermal and wind “power plants.”

•

Our “Trusted Solar Advisor” initiative provides workshops, education, tools and resources to help customers
make informed decisions about installing rooftop solar. This year we expanded the program to include our
“Trusted Energy Advisor” program to provide resources for many other energy related options.

•

The Roseville City Council approved a plan to begin design and construction of Roseville’s first community
solar project. The project will allow residents who do not have the ability to put solar panels on their rooftops,
to purchase energy from a solar farm located in Roseville.

•

We are moving forward with our smart meter project to begin installing advanced technology meters,
starting next year. Smart meters allow customers to monitor energy use at any time, communicate with other
smart electronics and provide us with information to help manage the electric grid and power resources
more efficiently.

•

Our new billing system allows customers to view and pay their bill online or by text. They can also request
services such as turn on or turn off services electronically.

While technology is dramatically changing our lives and business, our mission - to improve the quality of life of our
community and customers with reliable electricity, competitive prices and exceptional service- hasn’t changed.
We look forward to the future and all of the opportunities that innovation provides.

Michelle Bertolino,
Electric Utility Director
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Reliability
Roseville is a growing, vibrant community with evolving

mix of longstanding homes and businesses as well as

electric needs. New homes continue to be built. Many

new ones.

of those new homes, as well as existing ones, feature
rooftop solar panels. It’s no longer unusual to see
electric vehicles on our roads, and customers are
installing smart thermostats in their homes.
Our customers are becoming more engaged with
their electricity. Their expectations are changing,
driven in part by new opportunities created by new

For 40 years, that area has been well served by the
substation but that equipment was reaching the end
of its useful life, and local growth was stretching the
substation.
Our $8 million, multi-year project to upgrade and
expand the substation is nearing completion. Dozens

technologies.

of employees and contractors worked safely for

At Roseville Electric Utility, our job is to provide the

critical facility.

programs and services our customers want while
making sure electrons flow smoothly, steadily and
affordably to the homes and businesses we serve. In
fiscal year 2017, we neared the completion of a major
rehabilitation project, the Douglas Substation, and we
started planning one of our next major capital projects:

four years to completely rebuild and expand that

“Installing state-of-the-art equipment at Douglas
and redesigning the electric infrastructure feeding
it will increase reliability and better protect lives and
property,” said Mark Wilhelm, power engineering
manager.

constructing the Sierra Vista Substation.
We’re using a technology modernization plan to
prioritize these and other projects to improve our
electric system. Like a map that tells drivers how
they can reach their destination, our technology plan
guides our decision-making and helps us sequence
capital projects.
“The electricity business has a lot of unknowns,” said
Assistant Electric Utility Director Paul Cummings.
“What will customers want in 10 years? What
services could we offer to meet those needs? What
technologies can be used to deliver those services?
We don’t want to install technology for technology’s

“In the old substation, power came in through one line

sake. Our technology modernization plan is guiding

only,” Wilhelm continued. “When we decided to rebuild

and prioritizing our technology and infrastructure

the substation, we tied in two additional lines to bring

investments.”

electricity to the substation. That way, if something
happened to one line, the other lines would take

Douglas Substation Upgrade
The substation serves customers along the I-80

over to keep the lights on so customers would not be
affected.”

corridor and sections of town near the cross streets of

The benefits of a multi-feed system were

Douglas Boulevard and Sunrise Avenue. The area is a

demonstrated last November, when a piece of
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equipment along a major line failed. But because that

We spent this year doing preliminary engineering for

part of our system takes power from multiple sources,

the new substation. We expect to break ground in

customers experienced no outage. Power simply

early 2018.

flowed through other equipment and life went on as if
nothing had happened.

“Roseville continues to be a very attractive place for

When completed in late 2017, the Douglas substation

is taking place on the western and northwestern sides

also will be able to distribute more power to the

of town. The next two years will be momentous ones

area. “We’re increasing the capacity of Douglas over

as fields that are empty today quickly give way to new

40 percent to accommodate future growth as well

homes, schools, athletic fields, shops and offices.”

as changes in the way customers use electricity,”
Wilhelm said.

people to live,” Wilhelm commented. “A lot of growth

“It’s our job to build the infrastructure that will deliver
electricity to those new homes, schools, stores and

“Roseville continues to be a very
attractive place for people to live.”
“As we look out 10 years, we expect electric vehicles

offices,” he continued. “Those lines also may bring

will become more common,” predicted Wilhelm. “When

electricity from those homes and businesses to our

electric vehicle owners come home from work and

electric system, as we expect a growing number of

they all try to recharge their cars at the same time,

homeowners and businesses will generate their own

it can really stress the electric system. Rebuilding

electricity using rooftop solar panels.”

the Douglas substation ensures there will be no
deterioration of service as our customers’ electric use

The transformation under way in the electricity

patterns change.”

business is dramatic. Metaphorically, it is like turning

Sierra Vista Substation Construction

80. Lots more options. Lots more complexity. Power

Six miles northwest of the Douglas substation, our next
large capital project is starting to take shape. It will
take two years and about $10 million to build the Sierra
Vista substation.
Today, hundreds of acres of empty land surround
the area in northwest Roseville where Sierra Vista
will be built. But by mid-2019, when that substation is
operating, it will be surrounded by as many as 8,500
new homes as well as shopping, recreation and
office parks.

downtown Vernon Street into a section of Interstate
flowing in two directions.
That’s why we’re so focused on installing the
technologies and infrastructure to support our
customers’ decision-making on electricity.
“If those future customers want to continue buying
electricity from us in the traditional way, that’s fine. If
people want to sell us some of their excess electricity,
that’s fine too. We provide a service. We flex with our
customers,” Wilhelm said.
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Other Projects
In addition to these two big substation projects,
Roseville Electric Utility also performed a wide range
of preventative and proactive maintenance tasks on its
electric network last year.

Our technology plan also identified another project
that needed to be done, to ensure we continue to
have “eyes and ears” on the health of our electric grid.
Last year, we completed our fiber optic network in
the city when our crews strung fiber optic cable over
Interstate 80 to bring the Douglas substation into our

Using an asset-management system that identifies

fiber optic network. This fiber project added additional

upcoming work tasks, we were better able to perform

communications capacity between all substations in

preventative maintenance on equipment. By repairing

the Roseville electric system. The fiber optic network

or replacing major equipment before it fails, we

is part of a monitoring scheme that connects all 17 of

prevent electric service interruptions to customers.

our substations and allows us to instantly transmit data
from thousands of embedded sensors.

This asset-management system is an essential element
of our technology modernization plan, which helps

These sensors monitor and relay data on many pieces

us prioritize equipment rehabilitation or replacement

of equipment across our substation network and help

decisions. In this past year, we used that system

us address issues. Are substations getting close to

to identify electric cables and other underground

being fully loaded? Has a vehicle just collided with

equipment that needed to be replaced along Cirby

a utility pole causing a fault? Did a station breaker

Way, Sunrise Boulevard, Harding Boulevard, Foothills

open unexpectedly? Each of these events could affect

Boulevard and near Oakmont High School. We also

electric service, but in different ways. These sensors

upgraded overhead lines along Church Street, Sunrise

help ensure customers receive uninterrupted electric

Boulevard and Gabrielli Drive.

service at their homes and businesses.

Our monitoring system immediately alerts operations

The fiber optic system is especially robust. If we lose a

personnel of major problems that have occurred within

fiber link, the system will try to reroute communication

any of our substations, potentially affecting thousands

through another path to maintain the communication

of customers. Having instantaneous intelligence

network with no downtime. Since Roseville owns the

into many aspects of our electric supply system also

fiber system, we don’t have to wait for a third party to

allows us to spot emerging signs of trouble and take

repair their communication lines. We can dispatch our

corrective action before it becomes an outage.

crews to fix it right away, allowing us to shorten the

“Mylar balloons have, at times, been a frequent cause

recovery time.

of power outages on our electric system,” said Jason

“These are examples where we are using advanced

Grace, electric operations manager. “But repairing

technology to deliver better service to our customers,”

an outage caused by a stray balloon caught in the

Grace said.

power lines is very different from repairing an outage
caused by a vehicle colliding with a utility pole.
Different teams and different equipment are required
to fix the problems. Having a communication system
that helps our operators immediately identify which
specific equipment has stopped the flow of electric
power allows us to focus our restoration efforts on that
particular part of the electric system controlled by
that equipment.”

“We’re certainly not the biggest electric utility in
California,” remarked Wilhelm. “We’re not even
the biggest community-owned electric utility in the
state. But I would say based on my nearly 40 years
in the electric industry, Roseville Electric Utility’s
staff, and their capabilities, are at the leading edge
of sophistication and excellence. We can match up
against anyone, and our customers are better off
for that.”

Community, Customers & Finances
Everything we do at Roseville Electric Utility is to meet the current and future needs of our customers.
As a locally owned utility, we keep money in the community rather than sending it to shareholders.
We invest in community partnerships and activities that improve the quality of life here in Roseville.
During last year, the three major bond-rating firms recognizing our focused purpose and sound
financial footing, upgraded our creditworthiness to AA- and A1. As a result of the upgraded rating, we
were able to refinance $60 million in bonds, which will lower our annual interest payments by about
$500,000 a year. Those savings help offset upward pressure on our electric prices. Most importantly,
that’s money we don’t have to collect from customers!

New Website and New Customer Information System Create
Technology Foundation
A better bond rating will save customers money and help the utility modernize our electric grid,
especially the new advanced meters we plan to install at homes and businesses. That advanced
meter rollout, expected to begin in 2018, was the subject of a lot of behind-the-scenes work this year.
“Before we can deploy advanced meters at homes and businesses, we needed to update our utility
billing system and our website,” said Philip McAvoy, assistant electric utility director. “These three
strategic technology projects — advanced meters, new billing system and new website — will create
an integrated digital platform that transforms the customer experience, lowers costs and improves
the environment.”
One technology project we worked hard on in 2017 was installing a new customer billing system. The
system we had been using for 20 years was obsolete and the vendor was unable to update it. The
system was so old it didn’t even have the ability to capture a customer’s email address! Customers
have told us they want to communicate with us electronically, using either text or email. Continuing
to use the old system prevented us from meeting customers’ clearly stated preferences and
expectations. So change was needed.
Our website also was due for an upgrade. Customers told us it required too many clicks to find
the information they wanted. The architecture was not intuitive, searches turned up unrelated
information, and customers were unable to
perform self-service tasks like turning on or
turning off electric service.
So we spent a good bit of 2017
redesigning and relaunching our website.
“An integrated website and utility billing
system are critical determinants of the
customer experience,” McAvoy observed.
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“The old systems made it harder for customers to

technology to improve customer service and the

report electric outages, and they kept customers from

customer experience.

conducting business with us in the way they preferred.
Outdated technology was hurting our relationship with

“Our new utility billing system is designed to

customers,” McAvoy said.

seamlessly interconnect with our new website,”

Under the old systems, when a customer wanted to

technology upgrades that offer meaningful

start or stop electric service, they contacted us and we

improvements to our customer’s experience and

sent a truck to the home or business to perform the

satisfaction.”

requested task. Roseville Electric Utility field service
employees travel thousands of truck-miles each
year to do these simple transactions. When our new
systems are up and running, customers will be able to
start and stop electric service without dispatching a
truck. It will be easier, faster and more convenient for
everyone.
Not sending trucks to execute turn on/turn off orders
for most electric service requests will reduce gasoline
consumption, lower vehicle emissions, ease traffic
congestion and free field employees to do other work
benefitting customers. All good things!
The new website and utility billing system will work
together to digitize a customer’s energy use data.
They graphically display our customer’s energy-use

McAvoy said. “These are critical back-office

The technology upgrades we worked on in 2017 will
form the basis for future service improvements. In the
future, we expect to begin modernizing our electric
metering systems.
For example, Roseville Electric Utility has not been
able to offer customers popular pricing plans, such
as time-of-day electric prices, because our existing
electric meters and back-office technology platform
do not support those services. Advanced meters are
needed to measure a customer’s energy usage by
time of day, to facilitate their enrollment in time-of-day
electric pricing programs.
Many customers install rooftop solar panels to lower
their electric bills, usually by selling excess electricity

information and make it available over the web.

back to us. As the industry evolves, it is becoming

During this past year, we expanded the Home Energy

when that electricity is returned to the grid.

Report energy efficiency program, making it available
to all customers. Providing desired information
over the internet is further evidence we are using

more important to know the specific day and time

That’s because electric prices change substantially
during the course of a day and across seasons.
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Electricity is worth more on a hot August afternoon

to begin in early 2018, and by mid-2018, electricity

than during a cool November morning. We will need

generated by the sun is scheduled to be flowing.

advanced meters to accurately measure the time and
volume of electricity flows to and from our customers’
homes and businesses so we can price the credits
those customers receive from us.
Even if you don’t have solar panels on your roof, you
may want to run your appliances at night, when lower
demand for electricity means lower prices. A timeof-day electric pricing option will be made possible
with our metering upgrade project and new customer
information system.
“Time-of-day electric prices are another option
we are considering to respond to our customers’
evolving demands and expectations,” McAvoy said.
“Increasingly, they want electricity their way, priced
around their needs and lifestyles.”
“These three separate but related strategic
technology upgrades — advanced meters, customer
information system and new website — will lead to
a better customer experience, lower costs, cleaner
environment and further improve satisfaction ratings

“We have found a very high level of customer interest
in community solar, mainly because some people are
not able or willing to put solar panels on their roofs,”

Last year, over 650
customers installed
solar systems on
their rooftops.
said David Bradford, electric customer programs
supervisor. “During the last year, we connected with
those customers to better understand their needs and
develop a plan that works for them and for us: a local
community solar program.”
We expect several hundred solar supporters will be
served by the new facility. Should there be sufficient
demand, we could expand it.

by providing customers with the options they want,” he

“Locally sourced renewable energy is very important

added.

to our customers,” continued Bradford. “We wanted to

We were grateful our customers gave us very strong

be responsive to their requests.”

marks for customer satisfaction in 2017. And we spent

The community solar pilot project represents an

the past year implementing improvement ideas they

evolution of Roseville Electric Utility’s commitment to

identified that would lead to an even better-quality

meeting customer expectations for solar power. During

customer experience.

2017, about 150 customers attended a “Your Trusted

As the electricity business continues to evolve, we
believe our strategy of collaborating with customers
will ensure they are well-served and we are wellpositioned, no matter what the future may bring.

Solar Advisor” workshop, where the pros and cons of
installing photovoltaic panels on the rooftops of homes
or businesses were presented.
We began those workshops a few years ago to
provide customers with accurate, unbiased information

Expanding Commitment to Solar Power
This year we wrapped up the analytic and engineering
work on our community solar pilot program. We
awarded a contract to a firm to construct the onemegawatt solar facility. Construction is scheduled
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about rooftop solar power. Over the years, David
Dominguez has reached hundreds of customers —
either in person at the workshops or over the phone —
and many have expressed gratitude for the information
he provided.

In fact, customers who were aware of David’s role as Your Trusted Solar Advisor, attended one of his
workshops or spoke with him on the phone were significantly more satisfied with Roseville Electric
Utility compared to those who had not interacted with David, based on a recent customer survey.
Last year, over 650 customers installed solar systems on their rooftops. Overall, our customers have
installed more than 3,400 solar systems on their homes and businesses in recent years. The amount
of electricity those solar panels can generate, up to 13 megawatts, is about the amount of electricity
produced by a small power plant, but without any emissions.
We support and applaud our customers’ commitment to renewable energy and to personalizing their
electricity.
On a per-capita basis across the nation, Roseville has won awards for its commitment to solar
energy. Our city is one of the nation’s top 10 cities for solar penetration. We think this is an important
validation of our role in facilitating customer decision-making around solar power. And we’re taking
that one step further by committing to build a community solar installation.

Electric Vehicles
Another aspect of the alternate energy movement is electric vehicles (EVs). Governor Jerry Brown
would like to see many more EVs on our roads. We share his enthusiasm for investigating advanced
transportation options, which could help clean our air.
The growing adoption of EVs in our community will require advanced technologies to ensure we can
continue to meet the electric needs of all customers.
At this point, two things are clear. First,
a wider deployment of EVs will require
building a cohesive network of charging
stations. Second, we will need to ensure
that when customers recharge their EVs,
their neighbor’s electric reliability does
not suffer.
That’s why in 2017 we began actively
assessing local EV ownership and
projecting potential future electric vehicle
prevalence in our community. That study, which will wrap up in 2018, will help us better understand
the impacts EVs could have on our utility and our community.
As with solar power, our electric vehicle goal is to make sure we understand what customers want
and how we can support them in fulfilling their energy goals. Whether a Roseville resident owns
an EV, or out-of-town residents use electric vehicles to drive to work or go shopping, increased EV
ownership will affect our electric system, our customers, and our community. In 2017, we began
taking steps to find optimal solutions to a complex series of questions that will affect all customers.
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Invest Health Partnership
One of the first steps to improving a community is
to help make healthy options more viable. Roseville
Electric Utility has embarked on an effort, in
collaboration with the Health Education Council, called
the Invest Health Partnership. This effort is a unique
way to leverage grant funding with locally available
resources by involving local business and government
leaders.
The City of Roseville was one of 50 cities across the
country that received a grant this year to accelerate
improvements in neighborhoods that face significant
barriers to better health. We became part of the
Invest Health Partnership that worked to improve
the quality of life and community well-being in three
neighborhoods: Roseville Heights, Cherry Glenn and
Thieles Manor.

This innovative partnership was made possible
through a generous grant by the Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation and Reinvestment Fund and the
collaboration of several local organizations, including
the Health Education Council of West Sacramento,
Kaiser Permanente, various Roseville city agencies,
Placer County Health and Human Services and the
Roseville Heights Neighborhood Association.
Roseville Electric Utility uses public benefits funds to
support activities that make Roseville a better place
to live. We were pleased to devote our public benefits
funding in 2017 to improving these neighborhoods.

Safety
Safety is a fundamental value for Roseville Electric
Utility. This year we launched a new safety
communications plan, won an award for safety

Following stakeholder meetings with representatives

and began the process of upgrading our radio

of those communities, and other companies and

communication systems.

agencies, we embarked on a project we expect will
increase neighborhood safety and walkability while
also reducing crime.
The project involves replacing old, inefficient
streetlights with light-emitting diode (LED) streetlights
in those three neighborhoods. The LED bulbs produce
higher-quality lighting using less electricity than
conventional bulbs. Brighter lighting reduces shadows,
thus depriving potential criminals of places to hide. So
better quality lighting could help deter crime, which
should lead to more walkable neighborhoods.
Using our public benefit funds and our staff, we
installed more than 400 LED streetlights as part
of this project, directly responding to residents’
concern about the quality of street lighting in their
neighborhoods. These new technology LED lamps
have a longer life and use more than 60 percent less
energy than conventional lighting.
While the energy savings are important to us, being

“Slow Down, Roseville”
On any given day, employees from a variety of city
departments are working in our community’s streets.
Our employees are maintaining the electric system
while colleagues from Public Works are repairing
pavement, striping lines or working on traffic signals.
Far too often, those employees have had close calls
with drivers speeding through work zones.
That’s why last year we collaborated with other city
departments in launching the “Slow Down Roseville”
campaign. Rather than a traditional, “Reduce
Your Speed, Please Obey the Speed Limit” safety
campaign, “Slow Down Roseville” personalized
the workers whose jobs take them into the streets
each day.
The campaign featured Electric’s Kevin Hicks, who is a
fishing master and Star Wars fan.

able to respond to customer requests to improve the

By personalizing city employees whose jobs require

quality of life in these three neighborhoods is even

them to work in traffic, we wanted to break through to

more important.

drivers that their actions have consequences for city

Roseville Electric 2017 Annual Report

employees who work in traffic. Those city employees

recognized our low incidence of workplace injuries.

working in cone zones and wearing hard hats and

Our injury rate was 2.37 incidents per 100 employees

safety vests are real people with real lives outside their

working a 2,000-hour work year.

job. We asked drivers to respect that.

In addition to managers fostering a strong safety

“With close proximity to Interstate 80, and given the

culture, advanced technology also played a part in

number of four- and six-lane thoroughfares in the

capturing that award. One example: We started using

city, we’ve seen increasing instances of speeding,

digital tablets when holding work-crew “tailboard

particularly through work zones, where drivers should

meetings” this year.

be driving slower,” said Cummings.
“While we haven’t had accidents in work zones

“Using tablets, supervisors are now able to document
and update information with their crews in the field,

involving vehicles and workers, we have
had a number of near misses,” Cummings
continued. “Our goal, city-wide, is to reduce
the number of near misses to zero.”
“When a worker gets injured on the job,”
he continued, “it can impose significant
financial, social and psychological costs on
the employee, their family, other workers
and the utility itself. Because we value our
employees, we take every step we can to
prevent workplace injuries. But here, with the
Slow Down Roseville campaign, we need the
public’s help.”
Sometimes our work in the field requires us
to close down a lane of traffic. We try to do
our part to work safely, but drivers are an important
part of the equation too. We need their help to keep all
Roseville city employees safe.
The “Slow Down Roseville” campaign consisted of
digital banner ads that ran on the landing page of
the city’s main website and print ads that ran in local
newspapers.

including specific warnings about work hazards.”
said Grace. “The tailboard meetings are geotagged,
marking on a map the location of the meeting
identifying the hazards, and archived automatically.”
“We deployed the tablets in a pilot program last year,
and we plan to broaden it next year,” Grace continued.
“The tablets also allow us to take photos of work
hazards and share them with other workers as well as

Safety Award: We’re One of the
Best in the West

with management back at headquarters.

We were gratified to receive an award in 2017 from

is one way we are using advanced technology to work

a utility association that recognized our safe working
practices.
The Northwest Public Power Association awarded
Roseville Electric Utility a third-place prize for
community-owned utilities in the region. The award

Replacing paper records with real-time digital records
safer and smarter.”
During 2017, we also completed installation of global
positioning system (GPS) technology in all the vehicles
used by field workers. When there’s a power outage
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after business hours, we typically send a one-person

have seamless communications with our field staff

first-responder to the site to assess the situation. Now,

and across city agencies in case of an emergency,

with the GPS in each worker’s vehicle, should the field

we took part in a city-wide program to evaluate new

worker be injured or unable to communicate with the

communications equipment that will allow radio traffic

dispatch center, we know where their vehicle is and

to continue uninterrupted.”

can send help faster.

In an emergency, it is essential that police,

“The GPS upgrade is another way we are trying to

fire and first-responder agencies are able to

optimize our field workforce, improve worker safety

communicate instantly with the electric utility. The

and provide better overall service to customers,”

new communications equipment also assists with

Grace commented.

communications between field workers and the

Getting Everyone on the Same
Frequency
Roseville Electric Utility took another step towards
greater workplace safety last year when we
participated in a city-wide program to assess our radio
communication systems to better integrate with the
systems used by local police, fire and first-responder
agencies.
“The current radio system we have been using is
obsolete,” said Grace. “Also, we were informed we
would lose access to our long-time radio frequency
and support for the equipment. Because we need to
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dispatch center.
“We want to take every step we can to make safety an
integral part of every job,” said Kevin Kiger, our safety
coordinator. “That means everything from preventing
‘slip and fall’ accidents in the office to ensuring our
dispatch center can instantly coordinate with police,
fire and first-responder agencies.”
“That’s better living through technology,” Grace said.

Compare Our Rates
Electric Rate Comparison with PG&E1
(Cents/kWh)

Roseville
Electric Rates

PG&E Rates

% Lower

Residential

14.98

22.11

-32%

Commercial

13.74

19.78

-31%

Industrial

10.59

14.84

-29%

Customer Type

1

Based on estimated average annual rates as of June 30, 2017.

Customers, Sales, and Peak Demand
First Year Ended June 30, 2017

FY 2013

FY 2014

% Chg

FY 2015

% Chg

FY 2016

% Chg

FY 2017

% Chg

Residential

48,387

49,013

1.29%

49,851

1.71%

50,784

1.87%

51,638

1.68%

Commercial

6,561

6,615

0.82%

6,673

0.88%

6,700

0.40%

6,759

0.88%

54,948

55,628

1.24%

56,524

1.61%

57,484

1.70%

58,397

1.59%

Residential

443,489

434,594

-2.01%

428,824

-1.33%

439,495

2.49%

439,598

0.02%

Commercial

750,694

748,218

-0.33%

748,913

0.09%

750,482

0.21%

737,843

-1.68%

Total

1,194,183

1,182,812

-0.95%

1,177,737

-0.43%

1,189,977

1.04%

1,177,441

-1.05%

Residential

66,189

66,728

0.81%

67,660

1.40%

68,853

1.76%

68,543

-0.45%

Commercial

89,172

92,347

3.56%

96,028

3.99%

95,078

-0.99%

93,011

-2.17%

Total

155,361

159,075

2.39%

163,688

2.90%

163,930

0.15%

161,554

-1.45%

330

339.8

2.97%

340.03

0.07%

331.29

-2.57%

355.17

7.21%

Customers1

Total

Energy Sales
(MWh)

Sales Revenues
($000s)

Peak Demand (MW)

Revenues listed are as billed.
Note: Numbers may not total due to rounding.
1

Customer counts report as fiscal year average annual values.
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Sources of Power Supply
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Type

Area

Capacity
Available
(MW)1

Estimated
Power
(GWh)2

% of Total

Roseville Energy Park3

Natural Gas

Local

80

222

18%

Roseville Power Plant 2

Natural Gas

Local

24

1

Hydro

Western

63

208

17%

Geothermal

ISO

8

64

5%

Hydro

ISO

29

113

9%

Natural Gas

ISO

20

2

Renewable

Various

Various

24

246

20%

Non-renewable

Various

Various

120

371

30%

TOTAL

368

1,227*

100%*

Peak Demand (MW)

355

Capacity Reserve Percent5

4%

Source

Western Area Power
Administration4
NCPA
Geothermal Project
Hydroelectric Project
Steam Injected Gas Turbine
Generator Project
Market Purchases

1

Capacity in MW and available for System Peak.

2

One gigawatt-hour (GWh) equals one million kilowatt-hours (KWh).

3

Includes slight de-rating for summer (ambient temperatures).

4

Includes Reserve Capacity.

Capacity includes resources and contracts for long-term and seasonal purchases. Capacity reserve planning target is 15% of
the forecasted peak. Actual peak exceeded forecasted peak, resulting in 4% reserves.
5

*Numbers may not total due to rounding.
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Electric Enterprise Fund

Financial Highlights

Management’s Discussion and
Analysis – June 30, 2017

The Electric Fund’s assets and deferred outflows of

Management of the Roseville Electric Enterprise Fund

million or 5.9% over the prior fiscal year.

(Electric Fund), a fund of the City of Roseville (City)
offers the following overview and analysis of the
financial statements of the Electric Fund for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to
utilize the information presented here in conjunction
with the accompanying basic financial statements.

resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources by $341.5 million, an increase of $19.1

Total operating revenue was $165.7million, a decrease
of $0.9 million or 0.5% compared to fiscal year
2016. Total operating expense was $148.7 million, an
increase of $10.8 million or 7.8%. Operating income
was $17.0 million. Payment in lieu of taxes of $6.4
million was paid to the City as a franchise fee.

Overview of the Financials Statements
The Electric Fund’s financial statements are divided
into two sections: 1) basic financial statements, and 2)
required supplementary information.
Included as part of the basic financial statements are
the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statement
of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements.
The required supplementary information follows the
notes to the financial statements and includes the
Modified Approach to Reporting Landscaping Costs,
the Schedule of Electric Fund’s Proportionate Share of
the City’s Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule
of Contributions.
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Financial Analysis
The Statement of Net Position for the Electric Fund is as follows:

Condensed Statement of Net Position
FY 2017

FY 2016

Change

Current Assets

186,663.5

168,375.6

18,287.9

Capital Assets

424,681.6

434,680.2

(9,998.6)

4,553.2

3,478.8

1,074.5

615,898.3

606,534.6

9,363.7

33,630.7

34,612.4

(981.7)

24,212.5

26,066.6

(1,854.1)

Long-term Liabilites

282,678.0

290,411.6

(7,733.6)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

306,890.6

316,478.2

(9,587.7)

1,186.04

2,355.62

(1,169.6)

205,842.7

208,803.4

(2,960.7)

9,184.4

6,589.3

2,595.1

16,099.6

16,493.3

(393.7)

110,325.7

90,427.2

19,898.5

341,452.4

322,313.2

19,139.2

Assets

Non-current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Deferred Outflows

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Deferred Inflows

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Benefit of Rate Payers
Debt Service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION*
*FY 2016 Net Position restated
Amounts in thousands. May not total due to rounding.

As of June 30, 2017, the Electric Fund’s total assets increased by $9.4 million or 1.5% compared to the prior year,
primarily due to increases in unrestricted cash and investments and inventories. These increases were partially
offset by decreases in accounts receivable and capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. Deferred outflows
of resources decreased by $1.0 million due to a decrease of $10.9 million in the accumulated decrease in fair value
of hedging derivatives offset by an increase of $9.9 million in deferred outflows related to pensions and deferred
charge on refunding.
Total liabilities as of June 30, 2017 decreased by $9.6 million or 3.0% compared to the prior fiscal year. This
was due to decreases in the derivative at fair value liability, certificates of participation and revenue bonds, and
accounts payable offset by increases in net pension liability. Deferred inflows of resources decreased by $1.2
million or 49.7% compared to the prior fiscal year related to pensions and hedging derivatives.
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the Electric Fund is as follows:

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
FY 2017

FY 2016

Change

165,683.9

166,555.9

(872.0)

Production and Purchased Power

80,694.8

79,508.2

1,186.7

Transmission & Distribution

22,900.2

18,603.5

4,296.7

Customer Accounts, Administrative and General

20,901.5

19,274.0

1,627.6

Depreciation

24,153.2

20,495.2

3,658.0

148,649.7

137,881.0

10,768.7

17,034.2

28,675.1

(11,640.9)

Interest Expense

(9,833.8)

(9,995.5)

161.7

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

(6,374.5)

(5,937.0)

(437.5)

1,206.1

1,786.4

(580.3)

(15,002.2)

(14,146.1)

(856.1)

2,032.0

14,528.9

(12,497.0)

Capital Contributions

13,338.1

14,018.0

(679.8)

Transfers in/out from/to City

7,085.6

(835.7)

7,921.3

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TANSFERS

20,423.8

13,182.3

7,241.5

Change in Net Position

22,455.7

27,711.2

(5,255.5)

Net Position, Beginning (restated)

318,996.7

294,602.0

24,394.7

Net Position, Ending

341,452.4

322,313.2

19,139.2

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating Income
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investments, Amortization & Loss from Sale of Property
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Income before Capital Contributions and Transfers
Contributions and Transfers

Amounts in thousands. May not total due to rounding.

The Electric Fund’s operating revenue was $165.7 million, a decrease of $0.9 million or -0.5% compared to the
prior fiscal year. Sales revenue decreased by $3.5 million or 2.1% mostly due the elimination of the hydroelectric
surcharge which is adjusted annually based on the availability of hydroelectric energy. Of the approximate $161.5
million total sales revenue, $92.6 million was related to commercial customers and $68.8 million to residential
customers. Other operating revenues increased by $2.7 million, largely due to revenue from greenhouse gas
allowance auctions.
Total operating expenses were $148.7 million, an increase of $10.8 million or 7.8% over the prior fiscal year,
primarily due to adjustment of Construction Work in Progress for rehabilitation work in current and prior fiscal
years. Total production and purchased power expense was $80.7 million, which represented 54% of operating
expenses. Administrative and general expense amounted to $12.4 million, an increase of $1.7 million or 16.3% over
the prior fiscal year mainly due to amounts related to pensions.
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Operating Expenses

Depreciation expense was $24.2 million, an
increase of $3.7 million or 17.8% over the prior

Distribution &
Transmission – 16%

fiscal year, primarily due to capitalization of
capital projects and inclusion of vehicles in the
Electric Fund (detailed below).
Consistent with the City Charter, the Utility
may pay an in lieu franchise fee not to exceed
4% of expenses to the City General Fund as a

Production and
purchased
power – 54%

Customer Accounts & Public
Benefits – 6%
Admin and General – 8%

Payment in Lieu of Taxes. This franchise fee
transfer was $6.4 million for FY2017, an increase
of $0.4 million or 7.4% compared to the prior

Depreciation – 16%

fiscal year.

Investment earnings, including the net change in fair value of investments, was $1.4 million, a decrease of
$0.6 million or -30.1% compared to the prior fiscal year, mainly due to a decrease in the fair value of pooled
investments. Other non-operating items (expenses net of revenue) decreased by $0.2 million or -1.7% largely due
to debt refinancing.
Total capital contributions received was $13.3 million, a decrease of $0.7 million or -4.9%. A one-time transfer
was received to account for assets related to Electric Fund vehicles which were previously included in the City’s
Automotive Internal Service Fund. Capital assets for vehicles was increased $6,175,273, accumulated depreciation
was $3,664,481, and cash related to vehicle replacement was $4,751,010 for a net transfer of $7,261,802.
Transfers out of the Electric Fund
to the City for general rehabilitation

Capital Assets

projects were $1.5 million, an

FY 2017

increase of $0.6 million or 73.7%
compared to the prior fiscal year.

4,923.7

4,923.7

Buildings & Improvements

15,969.9

15,930.5

Equipment & Vehicles

13,521.2

5,788.5

Traffic Signals

50,106.0

49,049.5

Plant and Substations

71,551.2

68,240.4

Distribution

312,075.3

297,086.9

Generation

202,826.5

202,826.5

12,125.5

19,088.3

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

(258,417.7)

(231,570.6)

in the Electric Fund and an

Capital Assets, Net

424,681.6

431,363.7

adjustment to construction work in

Amounts in thousands. Numbers may not total due to rounding.

Capital Assets
As of June 30, 2017 the Electric
Fund’s net utility plant and
equipment, which includes
investments in land, buildings,
production and distribution
facilities, and general items such as
equipment and furniture, was $424.7
million, a decrease of $6.7 or 1.6%
over the prior fiscal year. Several
items contributed to this change
including the accounting of vehicles

progress projects.
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Land & Landscaping

FY 2016
Restated

Construction in Progress

Debt Administration
Long-term debt, net of unamortized premium of $11.2

Economic Condition, Outlook
and Activity

million, was $225.8 million at the end of FY2017.

The Electric Fund’s residential and commercial

This represents a decrease of $3.6 million or 1.6%

customer count increased 1.6% over the prior fiscal

compared to the prior fiscal year. The current long-

year while total retail electric energy sales decreased

term debt due within a year was $6.9 million and non-

1.0%, to 1.2 million megawatt hours. Revenue was

current long-term debt was $218.9 million. The debt is

down correspondingly. A new peak load of 355.2 MW

backed by the revenue of the Utility.

was reached in June 2017 during an early summer

The Utility maintains a debt service coverage ratio that

heat wave.

is consistent with the current provisions in the bond

During the year, the Electric Fund was upgraded to an

indenture document. This debt service coverage ratio

“AA-” rating by Standard and Poor’s Global Ratings and

is a measure of the adequacy of cash to pay debt

Fitch, Inc. and A1 by Moody’s Investors Service.

service. The Utility must maintain debt coverage of 1.1
as required by the bond indenture, however the Utility
has an internal policy to maintain a debt coverage
of 2.0. As of June 30, 2017, the Utility had debt
coverage of 2.67.

The revenue to expense outlook for the next several
years forecasts revenues meeting expenses.
Anticipated new development will add additional
residential and commercial customers. Issues that may
impact future rates include state and federal mandates

Interest rates on outstanding debt range from 1.03%

related to renewable energy and environmental

to 5.00%. In 2017, Electric System Revenue COP

concerns as well as increasing distributed generation

series 2017A and 2017B bonds were issued partially

throughout the customer base.

refunding Electric System Revenue COP series 2009

Requests for Information

and 2010 bonds. The refunding effort resulted in an
average $430,000 annual interest savings.

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of the Electric Fund’s finances. Questions
concerning information provided in this report should

Long-Term Debt
FY 2017

be addressed to Assistant Electric Utility Director –
FY 2016

Finance and Administration, Roseville Electric, 2090

94,807.4

106,266.5

Hilltop Circle, Roseville, California 95747.

Revenue Bonds

130,993.7

123,169.6

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT

225,801.1

229,436.1

6,915.0

6,465.0

Certificates of Participation

Current Portion of
Long-Term Debt

Amounts in thousands. Numbers may not total
due to rounding.
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for June 30, 2016)

CURRENT ASSETS

2017

2016

$134,917,277

$115,359,723

Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

16,361,849

17,029,969

Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

21,618,187

23,424,854

591,136

311,460

2,383,562

2,008,787

10,791,444

10,240,800

186,663,455

168,375,593

17,049,152

28,205,225

Current Assets:
Cash and investments in City Treasury

Accrued interest
Prepaids
Inventories
Total Current Assets
			
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land and construction in progress
Capital assets being depreciated

666,050,102

637,193,668

(258,417,690)

(230,718,682)

424,681,564

434,680,211

Investment in NCPA reserves

4,553,244

3,409,325

Derivative at fair value–asset

-

69,435

Total Non-Current Assets

429,234,808

438,158,971

Total Assets

615,898,263

606,534,564

6,962,273

3,559,310

Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives

16,283,629

27,168,636

Deferred amounts related to pensions

10,384,822

3,884,489

		Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

33,630,724

34,612,435

Less: accumulated depreciation
		Total Capital Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding

See accompaning notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for June 30, 2016)

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

2017

2016

Accounts payable and accrued payroll

8,759,233

10,298,890

Accrued liabilities

1,089,607

979,813

Current portion of compensated absences

1,399,717

1,402,414

Current portion of long-term debt

6,915,000		

6,465,000

Interest payable

1,504,275		

1,823,272

Customer deposits

2,557,154

2,317,233

Unearned revenue

1,987,528

2,780,007

24,212,514

26,066,629

218,886,123

222,971,120

2,370,816

2,627,038

Derivative at fair value—liability

16,283,629

27,168,636

Net pension liability

45,137,479

37,644,806

		
Total Long-term Liabilities

282,678,047

290,411,600

		

306,890,561

316,478,229

		
Total Current Liabilities
			
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Certificates of participation and revenue bonds, due in more than one year
Compensated absences

Total Liabilities

		
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
		

Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives

		

Deferred amounts related to pensions

		
Total deferred inflows of resources

-

69,435

1,186,044

2,286,182

1,186,044

2,355,617

205,842,714

208,803,401

9,184,369

6,589,267

16,099,600

16,493,250

110,325,699

90,427,235

$341,452,382

$322,313,153

NET POSITION
			
		

Net investment in capital assets

		

Restricted for benefit of rate payers

		

Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

		
Total Net Position
See accompaning notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for fiscal year ending 2016)

OPERATING REVENUES

2017

2016

$68,758,315

$69,369,857

92,615,687

95,038,615

140,622

635,183

4,169,300

1,512,252

165,683,924

166,555,907

Production and purchased power

80,694,840

79,508,171

Transmission and Distribution

22,900,151

18,603,499

Residential sales
Commercial and industrial sales
Other sales
Other operating revenues
		Total Operating Revenues
		
OPERATING EXPENSES

Customer accounts, service and informational

2,358,301

2,303,661

Public benefits and administrative and general

18,543,245

16,970,332

Depreciation

24,153,212

20,495,166

148,649,749

137,880,829

17,034,175

28,675,078

(6,374,514)

(5,937,021)

1,143,919

438,994

		Total Operating Expenses
		

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Payment in lieu of taxes (franchise transfer)
Increase in value of certain NCPA projects and reserves
Investment income

228,904

1,524,614

(9,485,129)

(9,974,520)

Cost of issuance

(348,651)

(20,964)

Gain (Loss) from sale of property

(488,322)

(524,988)

Interest expense and fiscal charges

Amortization
		

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

		

Income before Capital Contributions and Transfers

See accompaning notes to the financial statements.
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321,588

348,738

(15,002,205)

(14,146,147)

2,031,971

14,528,931

CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for fiscal year ending 2016)

Contributions and transfers:
		

2017

2016

Capital contributions–connection/impact fees

2,064,156

1,361,092

Contributions in aid of construction

3,469,534

4,052,555

		

Capital contributions from developers

7,804,434

8,604,310

		

Transfer in - contributions from the City

8,537,744

-

		

Transfers out to City

(1,452,117)

(835,707)

20,423,751

13,182,250

		Total contributions and transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, BEGINNING AS RESTATED
NET POSITION, ENDING

22,455,721

27,711,181

318,996,661

294,601,972

$341,452,382

$322,313,153

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.		
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CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for fiscal year ending 2016)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2017

2016

Receipts from customers

$162,482,126

$165,717,820

Payments to suppliers

(105,079,293)

(95,073,169)

(22,680,414)

(22,475,474)

Payments to employees
Other receipts
		Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitie

4,678,082

2,957,399

39,400,501

51,126,576

(6,374,514)

(5,937,021)

5,682,829

-

(1,452,117)

(835,707)

(2,143,802)

(6,772,728)

3,469,534

4,052,555

(10,389,670)

(10,319,333)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Franchise Transfers
Transfers In
Transfers (out)
		Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets, net
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Change in restricted assets
Issuance of debt
Debt issuance premium
Issuance costs
Principal payments on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Connection fees
		Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities

8,263

-

668,120

(314,848)

62,475,000

-

5,069,937

-

(348,651)

(20,964)

(71,179,934)

(6,824,000)

(9,485,128)

(9,974,522)

2,064,156

1,361,092

(17,648,373)

(22,040,020)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Interest on dividends
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments at beginning of period
Cash and investments at end of period
See accompaning notes to the financial statements.
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(50,772)

1,467,441

(50,772)

1,467,441

19,557,554

23,781,269

115,359,723

91,578,454

$134,917,277

115,359,723

CITY OF ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 (with comparative amounts for fiscal year ending 2016)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income

2017

2016

$17,034,175

$28,675,078

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:		
		

Depreciation

		

Pension expense

24,153,212

20,495,167

(107,798)

(908,223)

Change in assets and liabilities:
		

Receivables, net

1,806,535

301,586

		

Inventories

(550,644)

(766,257)

		

Prepaids

(374,775)

154,522

		

Accounts and other payables

(1,767,725)

1,719,079

		

Unearned revenue

(792,479)

1,455,624

$39,400,501

$51,126,576

Contribution of capital assets from developers

$7,372,160

$8,268,050

Capital assets transferred to the City

$3,287,190

$336,260

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amortization of bond premium
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding

$2,979,934

$604,000

$(3,402,963)

$(255,261)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General
The Electric Enterprise Fund (Electric Fund) is a fund of the
City of Roseville (the City) that owns and operates the electric
systems and provides these services to the businesses and
residents of the City. The Electric Fund is under the policy
control of the City Council. The accompanying financial
statements only reflect the activity of the Electric Fund as
it does not have any component units. The Electric Fund
is an integral part of the City and its financial statements
are included in the basic financial statements of the City .
These financial statements do not purport to and do not
represent the financial position and changes in financial
position, and where applicable, cash flows of the City.

B. Basis of Presentation
The Financial Statements of the Electric Fund are prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the acknowledged
standard setting body for establishing accounting and
financial reporting standards followed by governmental
entities in the United States of America.
The accounting records of the Electric Fund are also
substantially in conformity with the Uniform System of
Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC). The Electric Fund operating revenues,
such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principle activity of the
fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result
from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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Operating expenses includes expenses reflected by the
City as transfers related to rent payments, meter reading,
billing, customer service, pension and benefits, and other
indirect cost transfers.

C. Basis of Accounting
The Electric Fund is accounted for as an enterprise fund
(proprietary fund type). A fund is an accounting entity with
a self-balancing set of accounts established to record the
financial position and results of operations of a specific
governmental activity. The activities of enterprise funds
closely resemble those of the private sector in which the
purpose is to conserve and add to economic resources.
Enterprise funds account for operations that provide
services on a continuous basis and are substantially
financed by revenues derived from user charges.
The financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
The Electric Fund may fund programs with a combination
of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and
general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted
net position may be available to finance program expenses.
The City’s policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to
such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Cash and Investments

F. Prepaids

Cash and investments with original maturities of three
months or less are treated as cash and equivalents for
purpose of preparing the statements of cash flows. Also,
the Electric Fund’s portion of the City’s overall cash and
investment pool is treated as cash and equivalents since
these amounts are in substance demand deposits. Further
information related to the City’s cash and investment pool
can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR).

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to
future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items in the
financial statements.

E. Joint Powers Authorities
The Electric Fund records its equity in the general operating
reserve of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA),
and its net equity in those projects in which it participates,
as discussed in Note 7. The Electric Fund’s share of individual
project obligations has been netted against its share of the
related project assets, as reported by NCPA, because the
Electric Fund does not actively manage these projects
and does not expect to become directly liable for any of
the obligations of these projects. Amounts paid to the
Transmission Agency of Northern California (TANC) are
expensed currently because the Electric Fund’s estimated
equity, if any, in TANC is not material. Amounts paid to
the California Joint Powers Risk Management and the
Local Agency Workers Compensation Excess Joint Powers
Authority are charged currently to insurance expense, as
discussed in Note 8.

G. Inventories
Inventories is valued at cost, using the weighted-average
method and consist primarily of merchandise held for
internal consumption.

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until
then. The deferred charge on refunding reported in the
statement of net position results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The accumulated
decrease in the fair value of hedging derivatives is equal
to the fair value of the associated derivative instrument
liability so long as the instrument is deemed effective.
The deferred outflows related to pensions are amortized
in future years and are described in Note 5.
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The deferred inflows related to
pensions result from the difference between projected and
actual earnings of plan investments and are described in
Note 5.
I. Deposits from Customers
Deposits from Customers may be required by the Electric
Fund from commercial and residential customers when they
establish their account as specified in section 14.04.030 of
the City of Roseville Municipal Code. Significant customer
deposits may be held in the form of certificates of deposit
in the Electric Fund’s name with the interest paid to the
customer.
J. Compensated Absences
Compensated Absences including accumulated unpaid
vacation, sick pay and other employee benefits are
accounted for as expenses in the year earned.
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Changes in compensated absences payable consist of the
following:

Beginning Balance

$4,029,452

Additions

1,399,717

Payments

(1,658,635)

Ending Balance

$3,770,533

Current Portion

$1,399,717

K. Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognized based on cycle billings rendered to
customers. All residential and commercial utility customers
are billed once per month. There are twenty-three billing
cycles per month which include all types of customers,
based on their location within the City. Revenues for services
provided but not billed at the end of a fiscal year are accrued.
Contributions of cash or assets to proprietary funds from
state and federal agencies, developers and others are
recorded as revenue when earned.
L. Classification of Revenues
Operating revenues consist mainly of electric sales. Operating
revenues are used to finance the cost of operations, including
the cost of delivering and providing services, maintenance
and recurring capital replacement. All other revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Operating Expense
Operating expenses includes expenses reflected by the
City as transfers related to rent payments, meter reading,
billing, customer service, pension and benefits, and other
indirect cost transfers.
N. Allocation and Capitalization of Operating Overhead
Expenses and General and Administrative Costs
The allocation of operating overhead expenses and general
and administrative costs to capital projects, as well as FERC
distribution and maintenance operating expenses, was
based on a comprehensive analysis and study prepared
by the City’s staff. This analysis and allocation process is
conducted annually in conformance with the generally
accepted electric utility accounting practices within the
Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) prescribed by FERC
and utility accounting guides published by the American
Public Power Association (APPA) regarding job costing and
utility accounting.
The process of allocating and capitalizing operating
overhead expenses and general and administrative costs
was implemented to allow the Electric Fund Financial
Statements to reflect a chart of accounts consistent with
industry standards, provide more accurate operation and
maintenance costs, and track the total actual costs of electric
capital assets.

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
P. Fair Value Measurements

The Electric Fund categorizes the fair value measurements of
its investments based on the hierarchy established by GAAP.
The fair value hierarchy, which as has three levels , is based on
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other obserbable inputs;
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
Q. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net postion of the City’s California Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions
to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net postion have
been determinded on the same basis as they are reported
by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments
are reported as fair value.

O. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

R. Capital Asset Policies
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated
acquisition value on the date contributed.
Capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives. The purpose of depreciation
is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all
users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to
depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro
rata share of the cost of capital assets.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected
useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each
year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Electric Fund
has assigned the useful lives and capitalization thresholds
listed below to capital assets:

Useful Lives

Capitalization
Thresholds

Buildings

20–40 years

no threshold

Improvements

40 years

no threshold

Equipment

3–20 years

Plants and Substations

10–120 years

no threshold

Distribution System

7–100 years

no threshold

Electric Generation

10–40 years

no threshold
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$5,000

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed, net of interest earned
on the invested proceeds over the same period.

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

S. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 75—In June 2015, GASB issued
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The
objective of the Statement is to replace the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 45. In addition, the Statement requires
governments to report a liability on the face of the financial
statements for the OPEB provided and requires governments
to present more extensive note disclosures and required
supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities.
The Statement is effective for periods beginning June 15,
2017. The Electric Fund has not determined the effect of
the statement.

GASB Statement No. 81—In March 1016, GASB issued
Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements
by providing recognition and measurement guidance for
situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. This Statement is effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. The Electric Fund has
not determined the effect of this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 83—In November 2016, GASB
issuedStatement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. The objective of this Statement is to provide
financial statement users with information about asset
retirement obligations that were not addressed in GASB
Standards by establishing uniform accounting and financial
reporting requirements for these obligations. This Statement
is effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2018. The Electric Fund has not determined the effect
of the Statement.

GASB Statement No. 84—In January 2017, GASB issued
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective
of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should
be reported. This Statement is effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. The Electric Fund has
not determined the effect of the Statement.

GASB Statement No. 85—In March 2017, GASB issued
Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of this
Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and
financial reporting by addressing practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements. This Statement is effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The Electric
Fund has not determined the effect of the Statement.
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GASB Statement No. 86—In May 2017, GASB issued
Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.
The objective of this Statement is to improve consistency
in accounting and financial reporting for insubstance
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions
in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources other than the proceeds of refunding
debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose
of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves
accounting and finacial reporting for prepaid insurance on
debt that is extinguished and notes to finacial statements
for debt that is defeased in substance. This Statement is
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2017. The Electric Fund has not determined the effect of
this Statement.

T. Net Position

GASB Statement No. 87—In June 2017, GASB issued
Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement
is to better meet the information needs of financial stement
users by improving accounting and finacial reporting for
leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements
between governments; and also enhancing the relevance,
reliability (representational faithfulness), and consistency of
information about the leasing activities of governments. This
Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. The Electric Fund has not determined
the effect of this statement.

Unrestricted describes the portion of net position which is
not restricted to use.
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Net position is the excess of all the Electric Fund’s assets
and deferred outflows of resources over all its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is classified
into the captions below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of
net position which is represented by the current net book
value of the Electric Fund’s capital assets, less accumulated
depreciation and less the outstanding balance of any debt
issued to finance these assets.
Restricted describes the portion of net position which
is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of
agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations,
laws enabling legislation, or other restrictions which the
Electric Fund cannot unilaterally alter.

NOTE 2—CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets at June 30 are comprised of:
		
		

Balance at 				
June 30, 2016 (as restated)
Additions
Retirements
Transfers

Balance at
June 30, 2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:					
Land
Landscaping (modified)
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$4,373,682 				

$4,373,682

550,000 				

550,000

19,088,319

$10,678,829

($5,217,337)

($12,424,342)

12,125,470

24,012,001

10,678,829

(5,217,337)

(12,424,342)

17,049,152

						
Capital assets, being depreciated:						
Buildings
Improvements
Vehicles and equipment

13,457,985 		
2,472,564

-

5,766

13,463,751

33,634

-

-

2,506,198

5,788,457

716,491

(241,325)

7,257,550

13,521,173

Traffic signals

49,049,530

1,056,466

-

-

50,105,996

Plant and substations

68,240,432

-

(664,633)

3,975,413

71,551,212

297,086,864

7,844,641

(1,299,384)

8,443,163

312,075,284

Distribution
Generation
Total capital assets being depreciated

202,826,488

-

-

-

202,826,488

638,922,320

9,651,232

(2,205,342)

19,681,892

666,050,102

						
Less accumulated depreciation for:					
Buildings

(4,839,178)

(335,778)

-

-

(5,174,956)

(895,298)

(124,890)

-

-

(1,020,188)

(3,986,882)

(981,048)

237,278

(4,402,634)

(9,133,286)

(25,707,556)

(1,990,724)

-

-

(27,698,280)

Plant and substations

(23,394,559)

(2,140,671)

556,844

-

(24,978,386)

Distribution

(83,435,969)

(7,802,342)

914,635

-

(90,323,676)

Generation

(89,311,159)

(10,777,759)

-

-

(100,088,918)

(231,570,601)

(24,153,212)

1,708,757

(4,402,634)

(258,417,690)

407,351,719

(14,501,980)

(496,585)

15,279,258

407,632,412

$431,363,720

($3,823,151)

($5,713,922)

$2,854,916

$424,681,564

Improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Traffic signals

Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated
Capital assets, net

Total transfer amount reflects transfers from the City of Roseville Vehicle Fund.

A. Landscaping Covered by the Modified Approach
The City has elected to use the modified approach with respect to its landscaping. The City’s policy based on current
funding is to maintain the landscaping at an average Ground Management Index (GMI) of Level 3, instead of providing
depreciation. During fiscal year 2017 the Electric Fund expended $28,150 to preserve its landscaping. The City estimates
that it will be required to expend approximately $30,000 in fiscal year 2018 to maintain its landscaping at this level.
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NOTE 3—CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City pools cash from all sources and all funds, except
certain specific investments within funds and cash with
fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum
yield, consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual
funds can make expenditures at any time.
The City and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments
and in investment pools. Individual investments are
evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called
securities instruments, or by an electronic entry registering
the owner in the records of the institution issuing the
security, called the book entry system. Individual investments
are generally made by the City’s fiscal agents as required
under its debt issues. In order to maximize security, the City
employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian
of all City managed investments, regardless of their form.
The City’s investments of the Electric Fund are carried at
fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. The City adjusts the carrying value of its
investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year
end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in
income for that fiscal year.

A. Classification
Cash and investments of the Electric Fund are classified in
the financial statements as shown below, based on whether
or not their use is restricted under the terms of City debt
instruments or other agreements.
Cash and investments in City Treasury
Restricted cash and
investments with fiscal agents
Total Cash and Investments

16,361,849
$151,279,126

Cash and investments with original maturities of three
months or less are treated as cash and equivalents for
purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows. Also,
the Electric Fund’s portion of the City’s overall cash and
investment pool is treated as cash and equivalents since
these amounts are in substance demand deposits.
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017, consist of the
following:
City of Roseville pooled
cash and investments
Cash on hand
Investments
Total Cash and Investments
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$134,917,277

$134,916,677
600
16,361,849
$151,279,126

NOTE 3—CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy
The City’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the following, provided the
credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the City; and approved percentages and maturities are not exceeded. The
table below also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s Investment Policy where
it is more restrictive:

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit
Quality

Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

U.S. Treasury Obligations (A)

5 Years

None

None

None		

U.S. Agency Securities (A)

5 Years

None

None

None

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities

5 Years

AA

20%

None

N/A

A

None

None

Local Agency Bonds

5 Years

None

None

None

Repurchase Agreements

30 days

None

None

None

Bankers’ Acceptances

180 days

None

40%

30%

Commercial Paper

270 days

A-1

25%

10% (B)

Medium-Term Notes

5 Years

A

30%

None

Collateralized Time Deposits

5 Years

None

30%

None

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Forward Delivery Agreements

Maximum		
Investment
in One Issuer		

5 Years

A

30%

None

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

N/A

None

None

$65 million/account

Insured Saving Accounts

N/A

None

None

None

Money Market Mutual Funds

N/A

None

20%

10%

Shares in a California Common Law Trust

N/A

None

None

None

Interest Rate Swaps (C)

N/A

None

None

None

(A)	In specified fund accounts where liquidity is not the primary investment objective, the maximum maturity can be up
to ten years with granted express authority by the City Council. Such investments cannot be made less than three
months following the approval of extended investment terms. All longer-term investments must be Federal Treasury
or Agency securities.
(B) Eligible Commercial Paper may not represent more than 10% of the outstanding paper of an issuing corporation.
(C) Interest rate swaps may only be used in conjunction with enterprise fund debt or investments.
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NOTE 3—CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of
certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the City fails
to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government Code requires these funds to be invested
in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures, or State statutes. The table below identifies the investment
types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these
debt agreements:
Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit Quality

U.S. Treasury Obligations

N/A

None

U.S. Agency Securities

N/A

None

Certificates of Deposit

30 days

None to A-1

Time Deposits

30 days

None to A-1

Bankers’ Acceptances

270 days

None to A-1

Money Market Funds

N/A

Aam-G

Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations

N/A

AAA

Repurchase Agreements

30 days

A

Investment Agreements

N/A

AA

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

N/A

None

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

N/A

None

Authorized Investment Type
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NOTE 3—CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

D. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest
rates. The City also manages its interest rate risk by holding most investments to maturity, thus reversing unrealized
market gains and losses.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by
the following table that shows the distribution of the investments by maturity or earliest call date:
		
Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Federal Agency Securities
Money Market Mutual Funds
Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC)
Total Investments

12 Months
or Less

13 to 24
Months

More Than
60 Months

Total

$3,987,399

$9,404,160

-

$13,391,559

-

-

819,554

-

-

$2,150,736

2,150,736

$4,806,953

$9,404,160

$2,150,736

$16,361,849

819,554		

E. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
actual rating as of June 30, 2017 for each investment type as provided by Standard and Poor’s investment rating system:

			

AA+

Total

Investments:			
Federal Agency Securities		

$13,391,559

$13,391,559

Total

$13,391,559

$13,391,559

Exempt from Credit Rate Disclosure
Not rated:			
Money Market Mutal Funds			

819,554

Guaranteed Investment Contracts			
Total Investments		

2,150,736
$16,361,849
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NOTE 3—CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
F. Fair Value Measurements
The Electronic Fund categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is used on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of
the asset. Level 1 inputs are quotes prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable input; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value
measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation.
The City’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgement
and considers factors specific to eash asset or liability.
The Electric Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:
Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical
Assets (Level 1)
Amount

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

Investments at Fair Value:
Federal Agency Securities
Money Market Mutal Funds
Total Investments at Fair Value

$13,391,559

-

$13,391,559

-

819,554

-

819,554

-

14,211,113

-

$14,211,113

-

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC)
Total Investments

2,150,736
$16,361,849
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Composition and Changes
The Electric Fund generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful lives
equal to or greater than the related debt. The Electric Fund’s debt issues and transactions are summarized below and
discussed in detail thereafter.
Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:
		

Original Issue
Amount

Balance			Balance
June 30, 2016
Additions
Retirements
June 30, 2017

Current
Portion

Certificates of Participation:							
2004 Electric System Revenue,							
3.00%-5.25%, due 2/1/34

$39,940,000

$5,000		

$5,000

2009 Electric System Revenue Refunding							
2.00%-5.25%, due 2/1/20
Add: bond premium

27,010,000

16,050,000		

$(11,300,000)

396,611

211,524		

(159,086)

4,750,000

$1,740,000

52,438		

2012 Electric System Revenue 							
variable rate, due 2/1/35
Total Certificates of Participation

90,000,000
157,346,611

90,000,000			
106,266,524

(11,459,086)

90,000,000		
94,807,438

1,740,000

								

Revenue Bonds:							
2010 Electric System Revenue Refunding							
2.00%-5.00%, due 2/1/20
Add: bond premium

55,845,000

54,075,000		

(52,555,000)

2,764,207

2,149,939		

(2,104,242)

1,520,000

470,000

45,697		

2013 Electric System Revenue Refunding							
2.00%-5.00%, due 2/1/29
Add: bond premium

48,780,000

43,750,000		

(4,345,000)

5,899,513

4,793,353		

(368,720)

39,405,000

4,515,000

4,424,633 		

2014 Refunding Electric System Rev. Bonds						
5%, due 2/1/34

16,485,000

Add: bond premium

2,129,224

16,485,000			
1,916,304

(106,461)

16,485,000
1,809,843

2017A Electric Sytem Revenue Refunding						
3.0%-5.00%, due 2/1/37
Add: bond premium

56,210,000		
5,069,937		

56,210,000		
5,069,937

(241,426)

56,210,000
4,828,512

2017B Taxable Electric System Revenue Refunding						
1.03%-2.41%, due 2/1/22
Total Revenue Bonds
Total

6,265,000		

6,265,000		

6,265,000

190,000

199,447,881

123,169,596

67,544,937

(59,720,849)

130,993,685

5,175,000

$ 356,794,492

$ 229,436,120

$ 67,544,937

$ (71,179,935)

$ 225,801,123

$ 6,915,000
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
B. 2004 Electric System Revenue Certificates of
Participation
On July 1, 2004, the City issued $39,940,000 of Certificates
of Participation (COPs) to finance capital improvements to
the City’s Electric System. The COPs are repayable from net
revenue of the Electric Utility System. The COPs bear interest
at 3.00%–5.25% and are due semi-annually on February
1 and August 1 of each year beginning February 1, 2005.
Principal payments are due annually on February 1 through
February 2034. The COPs were partially refunded by the 2013
Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds as discussed in
Note 4F below. In August 2014, the 2004 Electric System
Revenue COPs were partially refunded by the 2014 Electric
System Revenue Refunding Bonds as discussed in note 4G
below, leaving a PAR amount of $5,000.
C. 2009 Electric System Revenue Refunding Certificates
of Participation
On November 24, 2009, the City issued COPs in the original
principal amount of $27,010,000. The COPs were issued to
refinance the remaining outstanding balance of the 2002
Electric System Revenue Certificates of Participation. The
COPs bear interest at 2.00%–5.25% and are due semi-annually
on February 1 and August 1 of each year. In February 2017,
the 2009 Electric System Revenue Refunding Certificates of
Participation were partially refunded by the 2017 A and 2017
B Electric System Revenue Bonds as discussed in Note 4H
and Note 4I. Principal payments are due annually through
fiscal year 2020 The balance outstanding as of June 30,
2017 is $4,750,000.
D. 2010 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds
On October 21, 2010, the City issued Revenue Bonds in the
original principal amount of $55,845,000. The Bonds were
issued to refinance the remaining outstanding balance
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of the 2008 Electric System Refunding Certificates of
Participation Series B. The Revenue Bonds bear interest at
2.00%-5.00% and are due semi-annually on February 1 and
August 1 of each year. In February 2017, the 2010 Electric
System Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation
were partially refunded by the 2017 A and 2017 B Electric
System Revenue Bonds as discussed in Note 4H and Note
4I. Principal payments are due annually beginning February
1, 2012 through 2037. The balance outstanding as of June
30, 2017 is $1,520,000.
E. 2012 Electric System Revenue Refunding Certificates
of Participation
On November 7, 2012 the City issued COPs in the original
principal amount of $90,000,000. The COPs were issued to
refund and retire the outstanding balance of the 2008A
Electric System Revenue COPs.
The COPs were issued as variable rate securities with interest
calculated monthly equal to the LIBOR Index Rate. The LIBOR
Index Rate is defined in the Trust Agreement to mean a per
annum rate of interest established on each Computation
Date (monthly) and effective on each related LIBOR Index
Reset Date equal to the sum of (a) the Applicable Spread
(initially 0.625%, but adjustable based on the credit rating
of the Roseville Finance Authority’s long-term unenhanced
debt secured or evidenced by a parity obligation) plus (b)
the product of the LIBOR Index multiplied by the Applicable
Factor (initially 70.5%). The LIBOR Index is defined as the
London interbank offered rate for U.S. dollar deposits
for a one-month period, as reported on Reuters Screen
LIBOR01 Page or any successor thereto, which will be that
one-month LIBOR rate in effect two London Business Days
prior to the LIBOR Index Reset Date, adjusted for any reserve
requirement and any subsequent costs arising from a change
in government regulation. The interest rate of the

NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
COPs cannot exceed 12% per year and may be converted
by the City into a daily rate, weekly rate, commercial paper
rate or index rate, subject to certain conditions defined in
the Trust Agreement. The interest rate at June 30, 2017 was
0.739%.
The City originally entered into a 27-year interest rate swap
agreement for the entire amount of the 2008A COPs, and the
interest rate swap agreement remains outstanding after the
refunding, but the notional amount of the swap is based on
the notional amount of the 2008A COPs. The combination
of the variable rate COPs and a floating rate swap creates
synthetic fixed-rate debt for the City. The synthetic fixed
rate for the COPs was 2.119% at June 30, 2017. The COPs
are subject to mandatory prepayment annually beginning
February 1, 2023 through 2035.
F. 2013 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds
On November 14, 2013, the Roseville Finance Authority
issued the Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2013, in the principal amount of $48,780,000 to refund a
portion of each of the 2004 Electric System Revenue and
2005 Electric System Revenue, Series A, COPs. The Bonds
bear interest at 2.00%–5.00% and are due semi-annually
on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The Bonds are
repayable by a pledge of net revenue from the Electric
System. Principal payments are due annually on February
1 through 2029. The balance outstanding as of June 30,
2017 is $39,405,000.
G. Roseville Financing Authority Electric System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2014

amount of $16,485,000 to refund the 2004 Electric System
Revenue COPs. The bonds bear interest of 5%. Principal
payments are due annually on February 1 beginning in 2030.
Interest payments are due semi-annually on each August 1
and February 1, commencing on February 1, 2015 through
February 1, 2034. The balance outstanding as of June 30,
2017 is $16,485,000.
H. 2017A Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds
On February 8, 2017, the City issued Revenue Bonds in
the orginal principal amount of $56,210,000. The Bonds
were issued to refund a portion of the 2009 Electric System
Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation and the 2010
Elelctric System Revenue Refunding Bonds. The Revenue
Bonds bear interest at 3.00% - 5.00% and are due semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year. Principal
payments are due annually on Febrary 1 starting in 2022
and running through 2037. The balance outstanding as of
June 30, 2017 is $56,210,000.
I. 2017B Taxable Electric System Revenue Refunding
Bonds
On February 8, 2017, the City issued Taxable Revenue Bonds
in the orginal principal amount of $6,265,000. The Bonds
were issued to refund a portion of the 2009 Electric System
Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation and the 2010
Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds. The Revenue
Bonds bear interest at 1.03% - 2.41% and are due semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year. Principal
payments are due annually on February 1 through 2022.
The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is $6,265,000.

On July 24, 2014, the Roseville Financing Authority issued
Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, in the
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
J. Electric System Pledged Revenues
As of June 30, 2017, the total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 2004 Electric System Revenue COPs, 2012
Electric System Revenue Refunding COPs, 2009 Electric System Revenue Refunding COPs, 2010 Electric System Revenue
Refunding Revenue Bonds, and the 2013 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds and the 2014 Electric System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, the 2017A Electric System Revenue Refunding bonds and the 2017B Electric System Refunding bonds
was $214,640,000. As disclosed in the official statements, all net revenues of the Electric System are expected to provide
coverage over debt service of 110% over the lives of the Bonds. For fiscal year 2017, net revenues amount to $41,784,606
which represents coverage of 262% over the $15,911,966 in debt service.
K. Interest Rate Swap Agreements
The City entered into interest swap agreements in connection with the 2012 Electric System Revenue Refunding Certificates
of Participation.
These transactions allow the City to create synthetic fixed rates on the COPs, protecting it against increases in short-term
interest rates. The terms, fair value and credit risk of the swap agreements are disclosed below.
Terms: The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swaps, as of June 30, 2017, are included
below. The swap agreements contain scheduled reductions to the outstanding notional amount that are expected to
follow scheduled reductions in the associated bond issue.

Related Bond Issue
2012 Electric System
Refunding COP (based on
notional amount of 2008

Notional
Amount
$36,000,000

Effective Date

Counterparty

Credit Rating

Fixed Rate Paid

Variable Rate
Received

Termination Date

5/13/2008

Bank of
America, N.A.

A

3.364%

70.5%

2/1/2035

Morgan
Stanley Capital
Services Inc.

A-

1m LIBOR

Electric System Revenue
COP, Series A)
2012 Electric System
Refunding COP (based on
notional amount of 2008
Electric System Revenue
COP, Series A)

54,000,000

5/13/2008

3.321%

70.5%

2/1/2035

1m LIBOR

$90,000,000

Based on the swap agreements, the city owes interest calculated at a fixed rate to the counter-party of the swap. In return,
the counter-party owes the City interest based on the variable rate that approximates the rate required by the associated
COPs. Debt principal is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the swap receipts and payments are calculated.
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Fair value Fair value of the swaps takes into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms and
conditions of each transaction and any up front payments that may have been received. Hedging derivative instruments
are classified as Level 2 and are valued using a discounted cash flow technique, which calculates the future net settlement
payments, assuming that current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates
(LIBOR or SIMFA). The payments are then discounted using the spot rates (LIBOR or SIMFA) implied by the current yield
curve for hypothetical zero coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. As of June 30,
2017, the fair value of the swaps was not in favor of the Electric Fund as follows:

Fair Value
Related Bond Issue

2017

2016

2012 Electric System Refunding COP (based on notional 			
amount of 2008 Electric System Revenue COP, Series A)			
Bank of America, N.A.
Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc.
			

($6,407,766)

($10,221,595)

(9,378,282)

(15,036,848)

($15,786,048)

($25,258,443)

Credit risk Since the fair values of the swaps are negative, the City is not currently exposed to credit risk. The fair values
may increase if interest rates increase in the future. Should interest rates increase to the point where the fair values
become positive, the City would be exposed to credit risk on the outstanding swaps. The City will be exposed to interest
rate risk only if a counterparty to a swap defaults or if the swap is terminated.

Basis risk Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by the City on the underlying variable rate bonds to the bondholders
temporarily differs from the variable swap rates received from the applicable counterparty. The City bears basis risk on
the swaps. The swaps have basis risk since the City receives a percentage of the LIBOR Index to offset the actual variable
bond rates the City pays on the underlying COPs and Bonds. The City is exposed to basis risk should the floating rate that
it receives on a swap be less than the actual variable rate the City pays on the bonds. Depending on the magnitude and
duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected cost of the basis risk may vary.
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
K. Interest Rate Swap Agreements (Continued)
Termination risk The City may terminate if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. The City
will be exposed to variable rates if the counterparty to the swap contract defaults or if the swap contract is terminated.
A termination of the swap contract may also result in the City’s making or receiving a termination payment based on
market interest rates at the time of the termination. If at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the
City would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt Using rates as of June 30, 2017, debt service requirements of the Electric Fund’s
outstanding variable-rate debt and net swap payments are as follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments
and net swap payments will vary. These payments below are included in the Debt Service Requirements at Note 4M:
For the Year
Ending June 30

Interest

Interest Rate
Swaps, Net

Total

2018

$1,161,900

$1,842,480

$3,004,380

2019

1,161,900

1,842,480

3,004,380

2020

1,161,900

1,842,480

3,004,380

2021

1,161,900

1,842,480

3,004,380

2022

1,161,900

1,842,480

3,004,380

Principal

2023-2027

$29,050,000

4,948,349

7,846,832

41,845,181

2028-2032

35,875,000

2,850,555

4,520,260

43,245,815

2033-2035
Total

25,075,000

520,623

825,576

26,421,199

$90,000,000

$14,129,027

$22,405,068

$126,534,095

L. Original Issue Discounts and Premiums, and Deferred Amount on Refunding
For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Any differences
between proprietary refunded debt and the debt issued to refund it is amortized over the remaining life of either the
refunded debt or the refunding debt, whichever is shorter.
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NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

M. Debt Service Requirements
Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt:

For the Year Ending June 30

Principal

Interest

2018

$6,915,000

$6,660,174

2019

7,130,000

6,438,223

2020

7,460,000

6,106,936

2021

7,800,000

5,769,137

2022

8,115,000

5,453,971

2023-2027

47,805,000

19,687,593

2028-2032

58,085,000

18,853,994

2033-2037

71,330,000

10,427,606

$214,640,000

$79,397,634

				

						
Reconciliation of long-term debt			
Add deferred bond premium (discount)
Net long-term debt

11,161,123		
$225,801,123		
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description
Substantially all Electric Fund employees are eligible to participate in the City’s Miscellaneous Plan, an agent multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS),
which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions
under the Plan is established by State statute and may be amended by City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
B. Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members,
who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of
full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of
the following: the Basic Death benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost
of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous
Hire Date

Prior to January 1, 2013

After January 1, 2013

Benefit vesting schedule

5 years’ service

5 years’ service

Benefit payments

monthly for life

monthly for life

Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary

50 - 55

52 -67

2.0%-2.7%

1.0%-2.5%

Required employee contribution rates

8%

6.25%

Required employer contribution rates

24.666%

24.666%

C. Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the employer contribution rates for
all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following
notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30
by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Electric Fund is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rates of employees.
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were 8.0% for the Classic Plan Members and 6.25%
for the PEPRA Plan members. The Electric Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s contributions to the Miscellaneous
Plan was $4,699,119 for the year ended June 30, 2017.
D. Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2017, the Electric Fund reported a net pension liability of $45,137,479 for its proportionate share of the
City’s Miscellaneous Plan’s net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016.
The Electric Fund’s proportion of the City’s Miscellaneous Pension Plan’s net pension liability was based on the Electric
Fund’s fiscal year 2017 contributions to the City’s Miscellaneous Pension Plan relative to the total contributions of the
City has a whole. The Electric Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s miscellaneous pension plan net pension liability,
measured as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 for June 30, 2016 and 2017 was 21.27% and 15.1% respectively.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Electric Fund recognized pension expense of $3,699,624. At June 30, 2017, the
Electric Fund reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the
following sources:

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date
Difference between expected and actual experience		
Changes in proportion

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

of Resources

$4,699,119					

$1,111,240

89,646				

74,804

1,044,791

-

4,551,266			

- 			

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments		
Total		

$10,384,822				

$1,186,044
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
D. Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
The amount of $4,699,119 reported in the enterprise fund as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting
from the Electric Fund’s contributions to the City’s plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as a reduction to pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30
2018

$ 26,777

2019

118,572

2020

2,769,116

2021

1,585,194

Total

$ 4,499,659

E. Actuarial Assumptions
The Electric Fund’s proportion of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions.

		

Miscellaneous

Valuation Date		

June 30, 2015

Measurement Date		

June 30, 2016

Actuarial Cost Method		 Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions		
Discount Rate		

7.65%

Inflation		

2.75%

Payroll Growth		

3.0%

Projected Salary Increase		

3.3%–14.2% (1)

Investment Rate of Return		

7.65%

Mortality

Derived using CalPERS membership data

(1) Depending on age, service, and type of employment
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period of 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can
be found on the CalPERS website.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense an inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPERS took into account both
short and long term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were
developed assuming that both memebers and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled
in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using
the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected
rate of return as then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest
one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using the
capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of return
are net of administrative expenses.
			

Real Return

Asset Class		Target Allocation

Years 1-10 1

Real Return
Years 11+ 2

Global Equity

51%			 5.25%		

5.71%

Global Fixed Income

20%			 0.99%		

2.43%

Inflation Sensitive

6%		

0.45%		

3.36%

Private Equity

10%		

6.83%		

6.95%

Real Estate

10%			 4.50%		

5.13%

Infrastructure and Forestland

2%

Liquidity

1%		

Total

		 4.50%		

5.09%

-0.55%		

-1.05%

100%				

		

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
F. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and
that the City’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contributions
rates and the employee rate. Based on those assumptions, each pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
G. Sensitivity of the Electric Fund’s proportionate share of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the Electric Fund for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for
the Plan, as well as what the Electric Fund’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

		

Miscellaneous

1% Decrease				
Net Pension Liability		

6.65%

$62,424,454

Current Discount Rate				

7.65%

Net Pension Liability		

$45,137,479

1% Increase		

8.65%

Net Pension Liability		

$30,844,694

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information the City’s collective net pension liability is available in the City’s separately issued CAFR. The City’s
financial statements may be obtained by contacting the City of Roseville’s Finance Department. That report may be
obtained on the internet at www.roseville.ca.us.
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NOTE 6—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The City provides medical benefits to substantially all retirees under the City of Roseville Other Post Employment Benefit
Plan, a sole employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The City is responsible for establishing and amending the funding
policy of the Plan. The Plan does not issue separate financial statements. As of June 30, 2017, there were 596 participants
receiving these health care benefits.
By Council resolution and through agreements with its labor units, the City provides certain health care benefits for retired
employees under third-party insurance plans. A summary of eligibility and benefits offered are shown:
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NOTE 6—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions
The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation using the entry
age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into account those benefits that
are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 6.50%
investment rate of return, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary increase, (c) 3.00% of general inflation increase, and (d) a
healthcare trend of declining annual increases ranging from 7.00% to 7.20% in 2017 to 5.00% for years starting 2021. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial
valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into
the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The City’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll, on a closed basis, using a 28 year amortization period with 26 years
remaining.
Annual OPEB Cost
The Electric Fund contributed $811,548, $723,472, and $648,594 toward the City’s annual OPEB cost for the years ended
June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively.
All disclosures related to the City’s postemployment health care benefit plan can be found in the City’s CAFR available
on the City’s website at www.roseville.ca.us.

Roseville Electric 2017 Annual Report

NOTE 7–NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
POWER AGENCY (NCPA)
A. General
The City participates in joint ventures through Joint Powers Authorities (JPAs) established under the Joint Exercise of
Powers Act of the State of California. As separate legal entities, these JPAs exercise full powers and authorities within
the scope of the related Joint Powers Agreement, including the preparation of annual budgets, accountability for all
funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the right to sue and be sued. Obligations and liabilities of the
JPAs are not those of the City.
Each JPA is governed by a board consisting of representatives from each member agency. Each board controls the
operations of its respective JPA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent
of any influence by member agencies beyond their representation on the Board.
The City is a member of NCPA, a joint powers agency which operates under a joint powers agreement among fifteen
public agencies. The purpose of NCPA is to use the combined strength of its members to purchase, generate, sell and
interchange electric energy and capacity through the acquisition and use of electrical generation and transmission
facilities, and to optimize the use of those facilities and the member’s position in the industry. Each agency member
has agreed to fund a pro rata share of certain assessments by NCPA and certain members have entered into take-orpay power supply contracts with NCPA. While NCPA is governed by its members, none of its obligations are those of its
members unless expressly assumed by them.
The City receives no income from NCPA, and does not participate in all of its projects. Further, NCPA does not measure
or determine the City’s equity in NCPA as a whole. NCPA reports only the City’s share of its General Operating Reserve,
comprised of cash and investments, and the City’s share of those Projects in which the City is a participant. These
amounts are reflected in the financial statements as Investment in NCPA Reserve.
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the City incurred expenses totaling $7,349,647 for purchased power, regulatory
and legislative assessments, association dues and prepaid assets paid to NCPA.
The City’s interest in certain NCPA Projects and Reserve, as computed by NCPA using unaudited information, is set
forth below.
		
General Operating Reserve (including advances)
Associated Member Services (including advances)

June 30, 2017
$1,510,616
76,879

Undivided equity interest, at cost, in certain NCPA Power Projects:
Geothermal Projects

1,030,712

Calaveras Hydroelectric Project

1,655,590

Combustion Turbine Project No. 2
		

279,447
$4,553,244
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NOTE 7—NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
POWER AGENCY (NCPA) (CONTINUED)
A. General (Continued)

B. Projects

The General Operating Reserve (GOR) is an additional
operating reserve for non-budgeted items that are
contingent or non-specific. Deposits to the GOR include
items such as the City’s portion of funds which resulted from
the settlement with third parties of issues with financial
consequences and reconciliations of prior years’ budgets
for programs. It is recognized that all the funds credited
to the City are linked to the collection of revenue from the
City’s ratepayers, or to the settlement of disputes relating
to electric power supply and that the money was collected
from the City’s ratepayers to pay power bills. Additionally,
the NCPA Commission identified and approved the funding
of specific reserves for working capital, accumulated
employees post-retirement medical benefits, and billed
property taxes for the geothermal project. The Commission
also identified a number of contingent liabilities that may
or may not be realized, the cost of which in most cases is
difficult to estimate at this time. One such contingent liability
is the steam field depletion which will require funding to
cover debt service and operational costs in excess of the
expected value of the electric power. The General Operating
Reserve is intended to minimize the number and amount of
individual reserves needed for each project, protect NCPA’s
financial condition and maintain its credit worthiness. These
funds are available on demand, but the City maintains
funds with NCPA as a reserve against these contingencies
identified by NCPA.

Geothermal Projects

Members of NCPA may participate in an individual project
of NCPA without obligation for any other project. Member
assessments collected for one project may not be used
to finance other projects of NCPA without the member’s
permission.
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NCPA’s Geothermal Project has experienced a greater than
originally anticipated decline in steam production from
geothermal wells on its leasehold property. NCPA will
continue to monitor the wells while pursuing alternatives
for improving and extending reservoir performance,
including supplemental water reinjection, plant equipment
modifications, and changes in operating methodology.
NCPA, along with other steam field operators, has observed
a substantial increase in steam production in the vicinity
of reinjection wells and is attempting to increase water
reinjection at strategic locations. NCPA, together with other
steam developers and the Lake County Sanitation District,
has completed the construction of a wastewater pipeline
project that greatly increased the amount of water available
for reinjection.
Based on an internal assessment of the melded costs of
power from the Geothermal Project and all other resources
available to the members, NCPA believes its members will
continue to be able to operate their electric utilities on a
competitive basis, when compared to local investor-owned
utility rates, while meeting all electric system obligations
including those to NCPA. In March 2009, NCPA issued
$35,610,000 Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds
(2009 Series A). The proceeds were used to finance and
operate the two NCPA 110 MW geothermal steam powered
generating plants, Plant Number 1 and Plant Number 2. In
2012, NCPA issued $12,910,000 in bonds for Plant Number 1
turbine upgrades. The City is obligated to pay its contractual
share of 7.883% of the operating costs and debt service until
it is fully satisfied, regardless of resulting cost or availability
of energy. At June 30, 2017, the book value of this Project’s

NOTE 7—NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
POWER AGENCY (NCPA) (CONTINUED)
plant, equipment and other assets was $90,776,615 while
its long-term debt totaled $32,765,001 and other liabilities
totaled $44,938,357. The City’s share of the Project’s longterm debt amounted to $2,582,865 at that date.
On October 28, 2004, NCPA approved a resolution to finance
the expansion and remodeling of the NCPA main office
building located in Roseville. The expansion is included
as part of the Geothermal Projects funded by the bonds
mentioned above. The City will recover its 7.883% share of
the cost of the expansion which was $204,958, with a 5%
return on the investment over a ten year period. As of June
30, 2017, the City was paid in full.
Calaveras Hydroelectric Project
In July 1981, NCPA agreed with Calaveras County Water
District to purchase the output of the North Fork Stanislaus
River Hydroelectric Development Project and to finance
its construction. Debt service payments to NCPA began in
February 1990 when the project was declared substantially
complete and power was delivered to the participants.
Under its power purchase agreement with NCPA, the
City is obligated to pay 12% of this Project’s debt service
and operating costs. In January 2012, NCPA refunded the
outstanding Revenue Bonds with the $83,785,000 2012
Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds. At June
30, 2017, the book value of this Project’s plant, equipment
and other assets was $412,237,290, while its long-term
debt totaled $354,298,371, and other liabilities totaled
$44,142,333 The City’s share of the Project’s long-term debt
amounted to $36,912,642 at that date.

Combustion Turbine Project No. 2 (Steam Injected Gas
Turbine Project)
The City is a participant in a 49.8 megawatt Steam Injected
Gas Turbine project which was built under turnkey contract
near the City of Lodi and declared substantially complete on
April 23, 1996. In October 1992, NCPA issued $152,320,000
of Multiple Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds to finance this
project. In January 2010, NCPA refinanced the outstanding
Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds by the issuance of the
$55,120,000 Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds Series A (2010
Refunding Series A). Under the NCPA power purchase
agreement, the City is obligated to pay 36.50% of the debt
service and operating costs for the Lodi unit.
The City’s participation in procurement of natural gas for
fuel for existing and new combustion turbine units was
approved in 1993. Although there is currently no additional
debt financing, the City and NCPA have committed to longterm payments for gas transmission pipeline capacity, and
entered a purchase contract for natural gas. The City is
obligated to pay 17.9218% of the natural gas purchase
contract.
At June 30, 2017, the book value of this Project’s plant,
equipment and other assets was $42,211,265, while its longterm debt totaled $38,163,048 and other liabilities totaled
$2,282,609. The City’s share of the Project’s long-term debt
amounted to $13,929,513 at that date.
C. NCPA Financial Information
NCPA’s financial statements can be obtained from NCPA,
651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, California 95678.
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NOTE 8—RISK MANAGEMENT
The Electric Fund, as a Fund of the City, is included in the
City’s risk management program. The City manages risk of
loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters by participating in the public entity risk
pools described below and by retaining certain risks.
Public entity risk pools are formally organized and separate
entities established under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act
of the State of California. As separate legal entities, those
entities exercise full powers and authorities within the
scope of the related Joint Powers Agreements including
the preparation of annual budgets, accountability for all
funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the
right to sue and be sued. Each risk pool is governed by a
board consisting of representatives from member agencies.
Each board controls the operations of the respective risk
pool, including selection of management and approval
of operating budgets, independent of any influence by
member agencies beyond their representation on that
board. Obligations and liabilities of these risk pools are not
the City’s responsibility.
The contributions made to the risk pools below equal
the ratio of the respective member payrolls to the total
payrolls of all entities participating in the same layer of each
program, in each program year. Actual surpluses or losses
are shared according to a formula developed from overall
loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage
basis after a retrospective rating.
A. Risk Coverage
General Liability, Property, and Boiler and Machinery
The City is a member of the California Joint Powers Risk
Management Authority (CJPRMA) which covers general
liability claims, property, and boiler and machinery losses.
Once the City’s self-insured retention (SIR) is met, CJPRMA
becomes responsible for payment of all claims up to the
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limit. Financial statements for the risk pool and more
information may be obtained from CJPRMA, 3201 Doolan
Road, Suite 285, Livermore, CA 94551.
General Liability Coverage
The City has a SIR of $500,000 per claim with coverage up
to a $40,000,000 limit.
Property Coverage
CJPRMA has purchased commercial insurance against
property damage. The City has a SIR of $25,000 per claim
with coverage up to a $300,000,000 limit.
Boiler and Machinery Coverage
CJPRMA has purchased commercial insurance against boiler
and machinery claims. The City has a SIR of $5,000 per claim
with coverage up to a $21,250,000 limit.
Roseville Energy Park Property Coverage
The City purchased commercial property insurance
specifically to cover the Roseville Energy Park. The City
has a SIR of $250,000 per claim up to a $200,000,000 limit.
Fiduciary Coverage
The City purchased fiduciary insurance specifically to
cover the OPEB Trust. The SIR is $25,000 per claim up to a
$3,000,000 limit.
Workers’ Compensation
The City is also a member of the Local Agency Workers’
Compensation Excess Joint Powers Authority (LAWCX),
which covers workers’ compensation claims up to $5,000,000
and has excess coverage through CSAC-EIA up to the
statutory limit.
Financial statements for the risk pool may be obtained from
LAWCX, 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento,
CA 95833.

NOTE 9—CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A. NCPA, Transmission Agency of Northern California
and Western Area Power Administration
Under the terms of its NCPA joint venture agreement,
the City is contingently liable for a portion of the bonded
indebtedness issued by these agencies under take or pay
or similar agreements, as discussed in Note 7. The City’s
estimated share of such debt outstanding at June 30, 2017,
was $53,425,020. Under certain circumstances, the City may
also be responsible for a portion of the costs of operating
these entities. Under certain circumstances, such as default
or bankruptcy of other participants, the City may also be
liable to pay a portion of the debt of these joint ventures
on behalf of the other participants.
The City is a member of the Transmission Agency of Northern
California (TANC), a joint powers agency. The City is entitled
to 2.1119% of TANC’s share of transfer capability in CaliforniaOregon Transmission Project (approximately 29.35 MW). The
City is responsible for a share of debt service on debt issued
by TANC under a take-or-pay agreement, approximately
$400,000 annually through 2039. The City’s estimated share
of debt outstanding at June 30, 2017 was $4,829,498.
In addition, the City has a long-term obligation to the
United States Department of Energy, Western Area Power
Administration, for 4.58533% of the output of the Central
Valley Project, California. This contract, also known as the
Western Base Resource, obligates the City to make payments
on a “take-or-pay” basis through December 31, 2024. The
City expects to pay approximately $3.5 million annually for
the term of this contract. The City receives approximately
153,000 MWh of energy per year under average hydro and
storage conditions.

B. Federal and State Grant Programs
The City participates in Federal and State grant programs.
These programs have been audited by the City’s independent
accountants in accordance with the provisions of the
Federal Single Audit Act as amended and applicable State
requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a
result of these audits; however, these programs are still
subject to further examination by the grantors and the
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time.
The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
C. Litigation
The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course
of business. In the opinion of the City Attorney there is no
pending litigation, which is likely to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the City.
D. Other Commitments
The Electric Fund had the following outstanding significant
commitments at June 30, 2017:
Amounts
(in millions)

Projects
Roseville Energy Park long-term service agreement

$29.5

Net power purchase contracts

36.1

Natural Gas Forward Obligations

77.6

Renewable power purchase obligations

60.3
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NOTE 10—GAS SUPPLY ACQUISITION AND RESALE

The City operates certain electrical generating plants
which provide power for sale to the public and needs
reliable, economic supplies of natural gas to generate the
needed electricity. In pursuit of that objective the City
and its component unit, the Roseville Successory Agency,
formed the Roseville Natural Gas Financing Authority for
the purpose of acquiring, financing and supplying natural
gas to the City. Summarized below are various agreements
entered into by the Authority to achieve its purpose.
A. Prepaid Gas Agreement
Pursuant to an Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of
Natural Gas dated January 24, 2007, the Authority used a
portion of the proceeds of its $209,350,000 of Gas Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007 (the Bonds) to prepay Merrill Lynch
Commodities, Inc. (Gas Supplier) for a twenty year supply of
natural gas. Commencing January 1, 2008, and continuing
through December 31, 2027, the Gas Supplier is obligated to
deliver daily contract quantities of natural gas on a firm basis
to the designated delivery point. Daily contract quantities
vary from month to month but not from year to year. This
commitment totals 2,352,000 MMBtus (millions of British
thermal units) per year or 47,040,000 MMBtus for the twenty
year contract period. The Authority has recorded a Prepaid
Natural Gas asset which is to be amortized as daily contract
quantities are delivered.
The agreement provides for payments to be made by the
Gas Supplier if it fails to deliver the daily contract quantities
and may be terminated by the Authority in the event of
non-performance by the Supplier. The Agreement will
automatically terminate if there is a termination of the
Commodity Swap (See Note 11D) which is not due to default
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by the Authority or if there is an event of default under the
swap agreement entered into by the Gas Supplier and a third
party. Upon early termination, whether due to the above
or due to any other optional termination event as defined
in the agreement, the Gas Supplier is required to make a
termination payment to the Authority that is expected to
be sufficient, together with other available funds, to redeem
the Bonds. The Gas Supplier’s commitments under this
agreement are guaranteed by its parent company, Merrill
Lynch & Co. Inc. under a guarantee agreement with the
Authority.
As of June 30, 2017, the book value of prepaid gas under
this agreement amounted to $149,206,977.
B. Funding Agreement
Under certain conditions specified in a Funding and
Assignment Agreement dated January 24, 2007 between
the Authority and Gas Supplier, the Gas Supplier has agreed
to advance funds to the Trustee to pay debt service when
due or to redeem bonds in the event of early termination.
Advances are required under covered swap deficiencies and
covered termination deficiencies and optional advances may
also be made. Advances are repayable by the responsible
party causing the deficiency requiring an advance under this
agreement. This agreement is coterminous with the Bonds.
The Gas Supplier’s commitment under this agreement is
guaranteed by its parent company, Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc.
under a guarantee agreement with the Authority.
There were no advances outstanding as of June 30, 2017.

NOTE 10—GAS SUPPLY ACQUISITION AND RESALE
(CONTINUED)
C. Supply Agreement

D. Commodity Swap Agreement

Pursuant to a Natural Gas Supply Agreement dated February
1, 2007, the Authority has agreed to sell to the City a
twenty year supply of natural gas. This Supply Agreement
is coterminous with and provides for the delivery of natural
gas in quantities which are matched to the Prepaid Gas
Agreement, discussed above. For each MMBtu delivered
(sold) to the City, the Authority will receive a variable revenue
stream based on a first of the month index for the delivery
location. The Agreement terminates upon termination of
the Prepaid Gas Agreement or upon the City’s failure to
make any required payment within two business days of
the due date.

In order to have its gas price exposure consistent with
prevailing market rates, the Authority entered into a natural
gas Commodity Swap Agreement with JPMorgan Chase
Bank (Counterparty). For the term of deliveries under
the Prepaid Gas Agreement and the Supply Agreement,
the Authority will pay an index price per MMBtu to the
Counterparty, and the Counterparty will pay a fixed price
to the Authority. The index price paid by the Authority is
expected to approximate the price paid by the City under
the Supply Agreement.
The monthly quantity and term of the Commodity Swap
Agreement are matched to those of the Supply Agreement.
Detail of the commodity swap agreement is discussed in
Note 11.
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NOTE 11—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
A. Summary of Notional Amounts and Fair Values
The City enters into contracts to hedge its price exposures to power and natural gas, and to procure energy supplies.
These contracts are evaluated pursuant to GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments, to determine whether they meet the definition of derivative instruments, and, if so, whether they effectively
hedge the expected cash flows associated with interest rate and energy exposures.
The City applies hedge accounting for derivatives that are deemed effective hedges. Under hedge accounting, the increase
(decrease) in the fair value of a hedge is reported as a deferred inflow or outflow of resources on the statement of net
position. For the reporting period, all of the City’s derivatives are considered effective hedges.
For energy derivatives, fair values are estimated by comparing contract prices to forward market prices quoted by third
party market participants or provided in relevant industry publications. The following is a summary of the fair values and
notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding as of June 30, 2017.

2017 Change in Fair Value
Classification

Fair Value, End of Fiscal Year 201
Amount

Classification

Amount

Notional

Level

Effective Cash Flow Hedges
Pay Fixed SWAP, Natural Gas

Deferred Outflow

Pay Fixed SWAP, Natural Gas

Deferred Inflow
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$(1,542,710)

Derivative

$(367,483)

8,687,000 mmBtu

2

199,534

Derivative

$(130,098)

552,000 mmBtu

2

NOTE 11—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
B. Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments
The objectives and terms of the City’s hedging derivative instruments that were outstanding at June 30, 2017, are
summarized in the next table. The table is aggregated by the credit ratings of the City’s counterparties. For counterparties
having multiple ratings, the rating indicating the greatest degree of risk is used.
Objectives and terms of the City’s hedging derivative instruments that were outstanding at June 30, 2017, are summarized
in the table below:
Type and Objective

Notional
Amount

Effective
Date

Maturity
Date

Terms

Counterparty

Counterparty
Rating

Hedge Cash Flows on PG&E
citygate Gas

620,000
mmBtu

6/1/2017

3/31/2019

Pay $3.99; Receive NGI
PG&E citygate price

BP Energy

A-

 edge Cash Flows on PG&E
H
citygate Gas

305,000
mmBtu

11/1/2016

9/30/2017

Pay $3.69; Receive NGI
PG&E citygate price

J Aron & Company

BBB+

Forward Contracts, Gas:

C. Risks of Derivative Instruments
Credit risk - Credit risk is the risk of loss due to a counterparty defaulting on its obligations. The City seeks to minimize
credit risk by transacting with creditworthy counterparties. Interest rate swap counterparties are evaluated at the time of
transaction execution. The procedure prohibits the City from executing energy hedge transactions with counterparties
rated lower than BBB by Standard & Poor’s or Fitch rating services, or Baa2 by Moody’s. Subsequent to entering into
transactions, the credit ratings of one or more counterparties may deteriorate. If so, the City’s credit risk management
policies increase the amount of collateral that the counterparty must post with the City when the counterparty owes the
City, thereby reducing credit risk associated with the decline in the counterparty’s credit worthiness.
Termination risk - Termination risk is the risk that a derivative will terminate prior to its scheduled maturity due to a
contractual event. Contractual events include bankruptcy, illegality, default, and mergers in which the successor entity
does not meet credit criteria. One aspect of termination risk is that the City would lose the hedging benefit of a derivative
that becomes subject to a termination event. Another aspect of termination risk is that, if at the time of termination the
mark-to-market value of the derivative was a liability to the City, the City could be required to pay that amount to the
counterparty. Termination risk is associated with all of the City’s derivatives up to the fair value amounts.
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NOTE 12—RESTATEMENT

A. Capital Asset Adjustments
The beginning net position of the Electric fund has been restated to account for accumulated depreciation on a large
project that was completed however not being depreciated.

Electric Enterprise Fund
Net Position - Beginning of Year, as previously reported
Adjustment to Capital Assets
Net Position - Beginning of Year, as restated
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$322,313,153
(3,316,492)
$318,996,661

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
MODIFIED APPROACH TO REPORTING LANDSCAPING COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

GASB Statement No. 34 allows the City to use the Modified Approach with respect to infrastructure assets instead of
depreciating these assets. The Modified Approach may be used if two requirements are met:

1. The City must have an asset management system (AMS) with certain features:
•

It must maintain an up-to-date inventory of the infrastructure assets.

•

It must estimate the annual costs to maintain and preserve those assets at the condition level the City has established
and disclosed through administrative or executive policy or legislative action.

•

The AMS must be used to assess the condition of the assets periodically, using a measurement scale.

•

The condition assessments must be replicable as those that are based on sufficiently understandable and complete
measurement methods such that different measurers using the same methods would reach substantially similar
results.

2. The City must document that the landscaping is being preserved approximately at or above the condition level the 		
City has established and disclosed. This documentation must include the results of the three most recent complete
condition assessments and must provide reasonable assurance that the assets are being preserved approximately
at or above the intended condition level. 					
PARKS AND LANDSCAPING
The City uses maintenance service level standards along with tracking systems to oversee parks and landscape funds.
Through an enterprise asset management system the department manages service requests, work orders and preventative
maintenance functions to maintain the established service levels within the parks system.
The City determines the service level standards by using a combination of frequencies and outcomes. Quality assurances
inspections are completed on a monthly basis to determine current conditions of the parks and landscapes that are
measured against the five designated service levels. The service levels are classified into five categories: “Rushmore” High-level maintenance (=1 on indexscale), “Yosemite” - moderate level maintenance (=2), “Sequoia” - moderate-to lower
level maintenance (=3), “Mojave” - minimum level maintenance (=4), and natural area not developed (=5). The levels are
defined based on National Park and Recreation Association maintenance management practices, as well as, city staff
input to determine frequencies and desired outcomes.
The City’s policy based on current funding is to maintain parks and landscape at an average GMI of Level 3. This rating
allows for moderate maintenance and is the recommended level for most organizations. The Electric Fund expended
$28,150 for maintenance in fiscal year 2017.
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SCHEDULE OF THE ELECTRIC FUND’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE CITY’S MISCELLANEOUS PLAN NET
PENSION LIABILITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
2015

2016

2017

21.27%

21.27%

15.10%

Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability

$35,340,103

$37,644,806

$45,137,479

Covered payroll

$14,222,485

$15,098,184

$16,397,168

248.48%

249.33%

275.28%

67.62%

66.97%

63.89%

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2016

Proportion of the collective net pension liability

Proportionate share of net pension liability as a percent of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percent of the total pension liability
Measurement Date

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.
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ROSEVILLE ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Actuarially determined contributions
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

2015

2016

2017

$ 3,375,790
$ 3,375,790

$3,884,489
$3,884,489

$4,699,119
$4,699,119

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll

$15,098,184

$16,397,168

$19,055,633

22.49%

23.69%

24.66%

Contributions as a % of covered-employee payroll

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.
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